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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Case Overview

On June 30, 2010, Paul Ceglia (“Paul”) filed a lawsuit against Mark Zuckerberg
(“Zuckerberg”) and Facebook, Inc. in Allegany County, NY (the “Lawsuit”) to
enforce the terms of a contract that Paul and Zuckerberg entered into on April 28,
2003 (the “Contract”). A copy of the court filing is attached as Attachment 1 - June
30th, 2010 Filing. Under the terms of the Contract, Paul purchased an 84% interest
in the software, programming language and business interests of the service that
was to become Facebook.

Paul is Facebook’s first investor and co-owner.
Objective

Paul is seeking to engage a law firm to represent him in a.) immediate settlement
negotiations and b.) the Lawsuit going forward. Paul will be interviewing multiple
top tier law firms. The successful firm will demonstrate 1.) a strong desire to
represent Paul, 2.) a commitment to developing a close working relationship with
Paul, and 3.) a contingency based fee arrangement that is fair for both parties. All
firms interviewed have already demonstrated that they have the experience and
competency to represent Paul.

Representation History

Paul originally hired Paul A. Argentieri, Esq. of Hornell, NY to file suit in Allegany
County, NY. Mr. Argentieri has and will continue to advise Paul in the case. Paul
then engaged Connors & Vilardo, LLP (“C & V") to represent him when the case
was first removed to federal court. C & V is a small but distinguished regional
firm of approximately 13 lawyers in Buffalo, NY. Paul and C & V have mutually
agreed that because of size, complexity and commitment required of this case, a
larger firm is necessary to properly represent Paul’s interests going forward.




LAWSUIT DETAILS

Current Status

The Lawsuit was filed on June 30, 2010 in the Supreme Court of New York, in
Allegany County. Shortly thereafter, the case was removed to the Federal Court at
the request of the defendants. As of March 1, 2011, the case remains in the US
District Court for the Western District of New York where it awaits a decision from
Judge Arcara on whether the case will be remanded back to the state court. Paul
expects that the Judge will order a hearing on the remand issue and may allow
limited discovery to determine domicile of Mark Zuckerberg. Paul does not
believe that the choice of venue will have any consequence on the resolution of the
case.

Fact Summary

A detailed Proof of Facts is included as Attachment 2 - Proof of Facts. This gives
the background on how the parties met and explains the major facts of the
Lawsuit. These include:

1.) An original copy of the contract exists and has been expertly verified.

2.) During oral arguments, defendants’ counsel confirmed “Mr.
Zuckerberg did indeed have a contract with Mr. Ceglia” and “Our
client entered a contract with Ceglia”. Please see Attachment 4 - Oral
Arguments for the full transcript.

3.) There is a witness to the signing of the contract

4.) Paul has a copy of the check that Zuckerberg deposited in his account
on the day the contract was signed.

5.) Paul has copies of emails from Paul referencing and negotiating the
terms of the contract.

6.) In an email dated July 22, 2004, which was 7 days prior to the
corporate formation of The Facebook, Inc., Zuckerberg offers to repay
the $2,000 that Paul had previously paid Zuckerberg.

Statute of Limitations

Zuckerberg's defense team has not committed to a clear defense strategy for the
Lawsuit. The statute of limitations defense is often anticipated as a major hurdle
for Paul to clear. The statute of limitations for most breach of contract causes of
action is six years from the date the contract is breached. The contract had no term
as it is non-durational and required Zuckerberg to a.) maintain and act as the site’s
webmaster, b.) to pay for all domain and hosting expenses from the funds received
under the contract, and c.) to maintain control of these services at all times. These
are promises of future performance within the contract. The Second Circuit of the
Southern District of New York has ruled and made clear that promises of future
performance within a contract provide for the opportunity to have a series of
breaches, each of which reset the statute clock to run anew.




Prior Cases

There were two prior cases wherein individuals sued Mark Zuckerberg with
similar causes of action. Both cases were settled out of court.

Eduardo Saverin invested $1,000 on January 7t, 2004, in return for 30% of the
ownership of Facebook. This investment occurred after Paul’s investments.
Eduardo’s share was diluted without his consent. His lawsuit to resolve the
dilution was settled out of court for a reported 5% of Facebook.

The Winklevoss twins sued Zuckerberg for their claims he breached an oral
agreement by using their idea and code to develop Facebook. They settled for a
reported $65 million of shares in Facebook. They had no written agreements.




Attachment 1 - June 30t, 2010 Filing
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SUPREME COURT

STATE OF NEW YORK _ ALLEGANY COUNTY

PAUL D. CECLIA sumMoNs AELEGANY COUNTY CLERK
: FILED

, Plaintiff
vs Index # 28758 UK 30 W

MARK ELLIOT ZUCKERBERG, Individually | ROBERT L, CHRISTMAN

and Facebook,Inc.
Defendants

TO THE ABOVE NAMED DEFENDANTS:

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED to answer the complaint in this
action, and to serve a copy of your answer, or, if the complaint is not
served with this summons, to serve a notice of appearance, on the
Plaintiff’s attorney within 30 days after the service of this summons,
exclusive of the day of service, where service is made by delivery upon
you persondlly within the state, or within 30 days after completion of
service where service is made in any other manner. In case of your failure
to appear or answer, judgment will be taken against you by default for
the relief demanded in the complaint.

Trial to be held in the County of Allegany
The basis of the venue is Residence of Plaintiff
Plaintiff resides in Allegany County

Dated: june 28, 2010 —
Hornell, NY 14843 ot
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PAUL A, ARGENTIER] . ATTORNEY AT L AW
188 MAIM STREET - HORNELL. N. V. 14843 - TELEDHONP rAA7) 324.3282
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To the above named Defendants:
THE NATURE OF THE ACTION IS: Declaratory Judgment

The relief sought is: Monetary Damages and 84% Ownership of
Facebook,inc. '

PALL A, ARGENTIERI - aTTORNEY AT LAW

188 MAIN STRERT - HORNELL, N. Y. 14843 - TELEPHANE (RAT) F24-3232
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ENDOASED
ALLEOANY COUNTY CLERK
FILED
SUPREME COURT Jur 30 2m
ALLEGANY COUNTY STATE OF NEW YORK
' ROBERT L. CHRISTMAN
PAUL D. CEGLIA CLERK
Plaintiff
‘ ' VERIFIED COMPLAINT
vs = o
. = =
miex# 34 298 = 3 = 3
nZ= s 9
MARK ELLIOT ZUCKERBERG, Individually, grc;:_;f % 1
and Facebook, Inc. oo = %?‘
Defendants oF= X O
S 3w
The Plaintiff, as and for his verified complaint against the < %= =
Defendants, alleges as follows:

1. Plaintiff, Paul D. Ceglia, residing at 2558 Hanover Hill Road,
Wellsville, Allegany County, New York, 14895 at all times
hereinafter mentioned as either. the Purchaser and/or the Buyer.

2. Defendant Mark Elliot Zuckerberg, upon information and belief,
resides at 2 Russell Place, Dobbs Ferry, Westchester County,

New York 10522, herelnafter referred to as either the Seller
and/or Contractor.

3. Upon information and bellef, Facebook, Inc. is a domestic
corporation having its principal office located in the State of New
York having been incorporated in New York on August 6, 2009,
hereinafter referred to as Facebook, see exhibit A attached
hereto and made a part hereof of this complaint,

4. On April 28, 2003, the Seller and the Purchaser entered
into a written contract, including but not limited to, the
Purchaser gcquiring Fifty Percent (50%) interest in the business
of the Seller and Facebook, see exhibit B attached hereto
and made a part hereof of this compiaint.

5. Upon information and belief, Mark Elliot Zuckerberg is the

principal owner of “The Face Book” aka "The Page Book” that gre
the predecessors in interest to Facebook,inc.

PAUL A. ARGENTIER! - ATTORNEY AT LAW

188 MAIN STREET -~ #I0RNELL. N. V. 14843 = TELEPHONE 107) 324.3232
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6. Under Paragraph 3 of the contract, the Seller and Purchaser
agreed that for each day after january 1, 2004, the Purchaser
would acquire an additional 1% interest in the business, per
day, until the website was completed.

7. Upon information and belief, the website, thefacebook.com, was
completed and operational on February 4", 2004,

8. According to the terms of the contract, as of February 4% 2004,
the Purchaser had acquired an additional 34% interest in the
. business for a total of eighty four percent (84%).

9. Purchaser paid consideration to the Seller for the contract, upon
information and belief, by a check in the amount of One
Thousand.-Dollars (31,000.00) to Mark Zuckerberg, on or
about November 24" 2003 among other consideration
tendered, see exhibit C attached hereto and made a part hereof
of this compiaint.

10. Upon information and belief, the Seller simply transferred the
originating website business from TheFacebook.com into
Facebook.com, and ultimately into Facebook, Inc. which is a

. continuum of the Purchaser’s acquisition from the date of the
contract until the present time, and also a continuum of the
business from pre-incorporation to incorporation of Facebook.

11 Since April 28*, 2003, the Purchaser has complied with the
terms and conditions of the contract and the Seller has failed to
similarly comply with the terms of the contract to the detriment
of the Purchaser.

12. Upon information and belief, Facebook is a closely held
corporation of which the Seller is presently the majority
stockholder, see exhibit D attached hereto and made a part
hereof of this complaint.

PAUL A. ARGENTIERI - ATTORNEY AT LAW

188 MAIN STREET - HORNELL, N V. 14843 . TELEPHOME (807) 324-3232
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WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, Paul D. Ceglia, hereby demands by
Declaratory ludgement against the Defendants, Mark Elliot
Zuckerberg, Individually, and Facebook, Inc. for an enforcement of
the terms and conditions of the April 23 2003 contract wherein
Plaintiff would acquire 84% interest of Facebook, Inc. and for a
Judgment for an Accounting wherein Plaintiff would obtain a
further Judgment against the Defendants in the amount of 84%
of any and all monies realized by the Defendants from April 28"
2003 to the present time, along with the costs, disbursements, and

attorney fees for this action.

June 29, 2010 Paul }. Argéntieri,Fsq.

Attorney for Plaintiff
188 Main Street

Hornell, New York 14843
607-324-3232

PAUL A. ARGENTIERI - ATTORNEY AT LAW

188 MAIN 3TREET -~ HORNELL, M. ¥ {2848 - TELESPHONIS (goT) 224.3232
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STATE OF NEW YORK }
COUNTY OF ALLEGANY } s5.

Paul D. Ceglia, being duly sworn, says that the deponent is the
Plaintiff in the within action; that deponent has read the foregoing
Verified Complaint, and knows the contents thereof ; that the same is
true to his own knowledge, except as to matters therein stated to be

belleves it to be true.

Sworn to before me thi
% Day of June, 20

1, €ESQ.

X
HOTARY PUBUC-BTM‘! OF NEW yOR
NO. OQAMMH‘)D
Quatitiad 18 stounen Co
misglof Lapin Jdhb 1%,

PAUL A. ARGENTIER

unty
0wl

tay Com

PALUL A. ARAENTIERI - ATTORNEY AT LaW

R L L B LT L e e L L )

16
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Entity lnfoémataon Page | of 2
NYS Department of State
Divisi@h of Corporations

Entity Information
The information contained in this database is current through June 25, 2010.

A L LA S

Selected Entity Name: FACEBOOK, INC,
Selected Entity Status Information
Current Entity Name: FACEBOOK, INC.
Initial DOS Filing Date: AUGUST 06, 2009
County: . ‘NEW YORK
Jurisdiction: DELAWARE
Entity Type: FOREIGN BUSINESS CORPORATION
Current Entity Status: ACTIVE

. Selected Entity Address Information
DOS Process (Address to which DOS will mail process if accepted on behalf of the entity)

CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY

80 STATE STREET

ALBANY, NEW YORK, 12207
Registered Agent

NON'E

This office does not record information regarding
the names and addresses of officers, shareholders or
directors of nonprofessional corporafions except the
chief executive officer, if provided, which would be
listed above. Professional corporations.must include

the name(s) and address(es) of the initial officers,

directors, and shareholders in the initia] certificate
of incorporation, however this information is not
recorded and only available by viewing the
certificate. '

*Stock Information

# of Shares Type of Stock g Value per Share
No Information Available

*Stock information is applicable to domestic hisinaee ~Aranratiane
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Entity Information Page 2 of 2

Name History

Filing Date Name Type Entity Name
AUG 06, 2009 Actual FACEBOOK, INC.

A Fictitious name must be used when the Actnal name of a foreign entity is unavailable for yse in New
York State. The entity must use the fictitious name when conducting its activities or business in New
' York State.

NOTE: New York State does not issue organizational identification numbers.

Search Regults New Search

Services/Programs | Privacy Policy. - | ~Accessibility Policy | Disclaimer | Return to DOS
‘ Homepage | ContactUs | Web Feedback
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“WORK FOR HIRE” CONTRACT

'SECTION 1- GENERAL PROVISIONS

) 3. Purchater's Property/Sellef's Responsfbllity
. Pmﬂanmhm&wmmpwfmndmhlrdﬁﬂwcmid
L. Definitiors upkeep for tha sarvers vecded for Its operation.

Mﬁ!lmsmmmmmmwﬁdwﬁmmm For “The Pace Book” Sefler, agrees to mututemm und gct 2 the sites webmarter
PURCHASER. - Pl Coghia and 1o pay for all domain and hosting expenses from tre fonds mocived under
CONTRACTOR/SHLLER - MII.K:HHM ll.‘h qﬂ:'m 1his comtract, and Seller agrecs fhat b will mainitin control of thess aovies

etnployess,supplicrs, or sob-contractors, frnishirig nﬂﬁﬁidy Equipiment, or  gr afl times,

seryicos,

CUSTOMER ~ SMMILCﬁmamfy;""" g prittesns, Tasteriels, specificstions, mnd my other
construction or other kervices form the Purdhwiier’ o whilgl gud&“ﬁndlor mm;‘hﬁwwsmgwﬁzmmh
mﬂmmﬁdcdfnmnﬁuml&kmrpﬂmhﬁﬂnquﬂ pm@ﬁm _‘ Whmdmaxnphﬂmnfﬂ)h
roquired to facilitate completion'of Prrchasecs ooirradd With mich oSty oo Budrivemsicinnfonikion are to be poed solely in the pesfommnce

PEIME CONTRACT — This comract betiveen Prrchenss, mid of tho wock by.thb.eefter sad:silk oot be ueed or disclased Sr sy other
Seller. . % thmwﬂ:mﬂhmhm‘npdmmmmm

2 Buotire Agreemrent
The contract botoroen the Purnhmner and Seller ae g Purchasa agree ment and

“work, madc fox hire™ reflects Two sepecare bosineys ventures, the Tt being 5gmwdc¢ﬁmm Le .

for the wotk to be perfirthed directly. for, the StreetFax Databace snd the lnmccmﬂmﬂdsmnuhmmb‘&mnmmmmipmmwﬁchh
Programming langusgs 10 de provided by Seller excluded from thig Prime Contrect; sridiithe cira.of diggates botweon the
Smmhﬂwmmmwafﬁumﬁmmmmdﬁx Purchaser and the Customer or boterectithie Purchaser and the Seflor
the purchasn sod dealgn of n sultabla wobsitn for the projoct Seller s roganting mterials or equiprocnt b be fafrished by ths Seller, tho Sellor
alréedy witiated thet s designed bo offer: the stadeats of Haromnd utiversity  ggrees 10 bo bonnd to the stae extent e the Purchassr-is bornd by the
wocess 1o a wesite gimilar to 8 Hve finctioning yestbook with e workng vevons-oft the Prime Contrac, and by wxy kodiall decisions mnd deteminmticms
tido of *Ttic Facn Book™ made thereundes, provided fia2 tho el shwil Turi the right to participate i

the senlement of 2y dispua I the exterk‘tht. tho Saller will be xffocted
I:uwmarmmwmomnwm(smf)hmm thexelys,
programiring langyage:end buimess itorests. derived from the expansion of No interest shall sccrme on ety payment(s) othersrimn doe the Seller, which is

that servies to a larger andiener. M«&Wmamhdmmﬂmwﬂmmﬂmﬂ“m

: the Porchaweér is ultimatety paid imterest.on moviey doe te Salfes The Sellar
3. Payroent Torms " ghall Bot be Beld Bable if fhis Sallet followes nstrootione of e Purchwe and it
No insaraos o precalim charges of prico oereeses will bo allowed 13 |ozer determived that the Purchimery istroctions wers ot n compiance
nless anthorkzed by Purcheger in writing. No lecrease In price from with the teing end specifications of the Prima Cotdract. Pending fnal
thit stated on the ﬂnnlumfwﬂlhcmnlﬂumﬂ\mgﬁmm - disporition of & dispene hereundes, the Seller ahall carmy on the work unless
" duratitmi 7 the order. ottrcriiee afpred 1 wrrithog by (b purchsens "
The Agreed tpon Cost ehat the: Sefler end tho Biryer have agresd Manhnmdmﬂrﬁnumﬂbmr:ynmidrmmfhﬁmﬂmmpodﬂmﬁm

gpan aro as {0 ows: Bayer agrecs 1 pay the sellar the Sum of Y1000 1 plece
hhmwmmhmmslmmmmnou

purﬂnﬂﬂﬁir'm
Lats frex are agreed 10 aﬂ%dﬁmhﬂmsﬂu 7. Prtent Indonmity
mmmnmmlmn,mmmmmumm Purchaser hold seller hurmiess for an infringerment sollers work miy

15

Wmhwmmmhnmwmm on petants beid by and thind party tn reslt from the dimct request
‘ ’!iflbrﬂiomrkmndcbypmchmhdﬂs‘wakmudutbrh:m agresment. _

MsyZl ma:;a;’,md mﬁw ﬂw

The Sefler hershy agrees (o bo responsibls for all chams Agninal the

onfarﬂmmdudmﬂ Purchmser of the Crxiomer e alleged infringenters of parenty by reason of

m?mwﬂnﬂhlwlzmmmMIMl%hmh the Porctmer's or Cugtomer©'s poxsexsion, o, or sake of oy wmtcrmly ar
the business will be due the buyor for cach day the webiite is delayed from oquipréent fmighed herennder. oy tho.Seller or by resson of the performance

Guat Aot of #ny work reverdor by the. Sellex. The Selicr egroas to dofhid at Ifs sole
Additicnal funds may be provided for ciller project ou am a3 peeded basit it cxpenne all sits agaiont tha Purchaser andior tho Cugtomer uhd 0 ew0 and
meaoledﬁmlmarmo}!uyer ‘ bold harmless the Purchashr and (he Custoroer from nnd against all costs,

exponved, jodgomentr, ond duneges-of ny ki which the Purchmer or tha
4 . - C\mmmmxybeobhgudmmotmtwbryl;mﬂmmcbulhmda
- Clrrges - sctenl jnfringoment of a putent or patents. The Pursbaser and the Customer
% BY PURCHASER ~ Purchuser agrces that oo farther 1evision shal  qormes t6 ronder whtever sssistance 2 reeunbly can 1 the wey of
beimplcmcnhcdmﬂﬂormlcmappmvcdby&u;ﬂu.'fhm mummdmwmmmmcﬂ:ﬂmmofmym&mt

revisions “This indermmty hall-not mxrend 10 alleged o sotmal snfiingements reulting
shall be transmitted for written spproval to seller ' from the Sellér's commlianos with the Purchewers or Curstomers's dénign,

B} BY SELLER ~ The Seller agrees that oo furthier mvision shall be instructions, processes, or fhmmties provided, however, that the Saller ogrees
implemented unt or wnlear approved by Buyer. Thase to be responmible ifit iy reasensbls 10 awma the the Seller shoald hiee boen
mnmuwmmmwmmsm womro af & possible atieffid or acnuml infrngement rraifting from the
Pax thmm& Department. Purcheser's or Cugiomer's design, tustructhams, processes, or formules and

fails 10 vodfy the Porchasars of sach possibility.
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8. Astignmment of Subcortmcting .
Neithet tre order nair any tighte, obligations; or monics due hormmder
are asgignable of rnuferibla (s venunty for advances a otherwice)
withaut the Parchaser's pricr writton consent, and except as to
purchasey of mer raterialz or sandavd commmraal arficles of parts, the
Seller shall not mubeonteace any major paction of the-work encompasred
by dnig’ order without the Purcharer’s pior wrinten spproval. The
Purchaser thall not be required to rcogning sny esmgnment or
subcantract pude withew ity prior weden comment.

The buycr acoepts thar there will be v other subcrmbmeron working
an Uy project their work will be azoepted provided 8 noncornperz and
“waock mede for hire sgreement” are f plica

5. Propiewry Righn

Lt i acknowledged thar this s & work made forbire agreement snd that
all Inreflecruad property ights or patent Sghts are thial of Stieerfux. Inc
All-code in portion ot m its éomplere forrn, remmin the propery of
SereciPax IncIf the twr t9 be gupplicd hereundas have been designed,
n seenrdance with mpecificabons or dam fumithed or origimited by the
Purchaser or im Cugtomer, such imma ahafl not bé reproduced axcepe: |
with the epproval of the Purcharer and, a9 applicuble, 1o Ceacomes md
all donwings, photogmrphee, dat, software, and othe wrikay matesal or
informution supplied m connection therewith shall at &l Grries rerman
the propery of the Miechaser or its Cuttomer and be repured,
promEdy upon request at the completon, terminttion, o Gnccllation
of this ardex. In the evere thar SormetFax dafauloy oo thmm
tights would be gmatad o acllar, :

10. Termmaton o
A. DEFAULT - Tho Purchaser may terminate this ardet of sy part
thcimof by wrtied nofrer if the Seller:
1) fads to muke ddiverie of to chinplete perfocmnce of
. obligntonn hareunder within the tme macified ar m
accordante Tith the kgreed schicdulos unlesy ruch failuee is due
. toacm of God, 3tnke or other cnieer which arg begend the
cantenl of the Scller. '
L) : . Faily o comply with the trrms and conditions of the purchare

" order and doex not cure such fihure within & pedod of te (10):

. calendar deyt. aftor written notice thereof.
& Maker an agsigrment for the bencfit of cosdicors widhoat price
" written conesit of the Purchaser, becomnes insalient or mbijcct
. toproceedings wnder any law roating o bankrupey,
. ieolency, or the selief of deboor.
Should the Purchaser elect to termnints for default, tha Parehnecr may
taka piwreasion of all or eny of the itemd to be lred hereundes
which et in the Seller’s possession withowt cigurd to rrage of
complotion and miy complete or cuusc Yhe work 0 2 corploed on
guch itemic of muy mumsfermre of proqure simiar iere Any
eddiforn! coxfr o mxperre ncurmd by the Purchamcy over and abere
the original purchase price from the Selloe phar feeigh cores 2hall be for
the secoort of the Sdler, . -
In all evenn, the Purchuzer shall not be or become Lable to the Scller or
eny third party aiming tirough of under the Sefler For ang portion of
the price of ang itetrnt that Purcheary dectr nor o accept Following
notice of prmemtion for dofaut.

11. Liene . :
THCSdlﬂWMMddivulheirﬂnﬁwbcsupchdh&mndnﬁmmd
dmof;l_)l.iem.,mamhn_nm. wnid clairre af lnboreor ac maedal men
. md the Purchaver oray wibhhold papment pending redeipt of evidencs
in form and-mabatanc mtisfacory o it of the 1heence of puch ixing,

dm'm;: s cleimbranges,

12 Goveming Law

- This Purchasc Order anid aay matcrial relating therets shall be governed
by die Jasg of the state in which tha Purchaser’s ofR9mbar invues the
ordet in locared. co

13, Recovery of Damages

I the Sellec should recover any darmages an a remult of sntizuet
vichtitnu in ay mannas due topeice fixing on the part of snothe
mamufrctures or Seller; the Sellex shall pay cver & the Turchaser any

aanonablé tme ofter the danbapes e recovered by the Sefler.

14, Noptieo ofLAl-)'m‘thpu!a

) The Seflex ohall insert the subrtaoce of this clause imcluding thm
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10.

Proof of Facts

Throughout the years 2001, 2002 and 2003, Paul Ceglia was developing an online database
of street intersection photographs that were eventually either hosted on Streetfax.com or
sold.

Streetfax was a large online database with photos of the majority of intersections within a
specified city. The database was intended to aid insurance adjustors in investigating
automobile accidents.

Throughout that period, Paul Ceglia would frequently post advertisements on Craigslist,
an online forum for qualified contractors, which included, but was not limited to, computer
programmers.

Specifically, Paul Ceglia advertised for programmers who would be able to develop the
search engine feature on the Streetfax website to have two unique aspects: non-specific
term searching, and synonymous term linking.

Those innovations were state-of-the-art at that time, and to Paul Ceglia's knowledge, were
not readily available in any code format at that time.

In early 2003, Mark Zuckerberg responded to the Paul Ceglia's advertisement on Craigslist.

Prior to the signing of the contracts with Mark Zuckerberg on April 28, 2003, Paul Ceglia
and Mark Zuckerberg engaged in multiple telephone and email conversations wherein
Paul Ceglia introduced to Mark Zuckerberg the specifications of a database and search
engine that could differentiate misspellings, non-specific term searching, and synonymous
term linking that Mark Zuckerberg initially refuted could be built or programmed.

Paul Ceglia prevailed upon Mark Zuckerberg after several weeks of intensive debate by
proposing multiple formulas to Mark Zuckerberg about constructing the non-specific word
search engine. Prior to the signing of the contract, Paul Ceglia convinced Mark Zuckerberg
that the use of a specific mathematical formula could succeed in searching for non-specific
terms.

At that moment in time, Mark Zuckerberg accepted the viability of Paul Ceglia's formula,
shared his enthusiasm about the coming project and offered to Paul Ceglia joint and equal
ownership interest in his business venture and continued development of a suitable
website for a project he was intending to initiate to the students of Harvard University and
with the working title of either “The Face Book.” or “The Page Book”. In addition, it was
further agreed that Paul Ceglia would also own 50% in the software, programming
language and business interests derived from the expansion of that service to a larger
audience.

Mark Zuckerberg offered, and Paul Ceglia agreed, to pay $1,000 for 50% ownership stake
in the “The Face Book” and to perform elements connected with the computer
programming work for the development of the site.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

In addition, Paul Ceglia offered to hire Mark Zuckerberg and Mark Zuckerberg agreed to
perform the programming work for Streetfax in the amount of $1,000.

On April 28, 2003, Mark Zuckerberg and Paul Ceglia met in person at the Radisson Hotel in
Boston, Massachusetts.

At that meeting, Mark Zuckerberg signed a written agreement to be the software
programmer for Streetfax and simultaneously agreed that Paul Ceglia would have a 50%
ownership stake in “The Face Book”.

At that meeting, Paul Ceglia tendered a $3,000 cashier's check, dated April 25, 2003, from
the Community Bank NA, to Mark Zuckerberg and Mark Zuckerberg deposited the
cashier's check (for consideration that exceeded the written contractual requirements) into
his student checking account at Fleet Bank.

At that meeting, the parties also signed another contract entitled, “StreetFax Back-End
Technical Specification”, that had been previously prepared by Mark Zuckerberg.

The Facebook/Streetfax “Work for Hire” contract and the “StreetFax Back-End Technical
Specification” contracts were both signed in the lounge of the Radisson Hotel in Boston
MA.

Paul Ceglia's employee accompanied him on the trip and was an eye witness to the actual
signing of both contracts as well as to the handwritten modifications (interlineations)
contained therein.

Those agreements memorialized their understanding regarding Streetfax and “The Face
Book” projects. In pertinent part, that agreement provides the following: The
Purchaser/Buyer is Paul Ceglia. The Seller/Contractor is Mark Zuckerberg.

“The contract between the Purchaser and Seller as a Purchase agreement and “work made
for hire” reflects two separate business ventures, the first being for the work to be
performed directly for the Streetfax database and the programming language to be
provided by Seller.” (Contract page 1, par. 2)

“Second, it is for the continued development of the software, program and for the
purchase and design of a suitable website for the project Seller has already initiated that is
designed to offer the students of Harvard university access to a website similar to a live
functioning yearbook with the working title of “The Face Book”. (Contract page 1, par. 2)

“It is agreed that Purchaser will own a half interest (50%) in the software, programming
language and business interests derived from the expansion of that service to a larger
audience.” (Contract page 1, par. 2)

Buyer agrees to pay the seller the Sum of $1,000 a piece for the work to be performed for
Streetfax and $1,000 for the work to be performed for “The Page Book” (Contract page 1,
par. 3)

“The agreed upon project due date for the Streetfax software is May 31, 2003.” (Contract
page 1, par. 3)




24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

“The agreed upon completion for the expanded project with working title “The Face Book”
shall be January 1, 2004 and an additional 1% interest in the business will be due the buyer
for each day the website is delayed from that date.” (Contract page 1, par. 3)

The agreement gave rise to an obligation for Mr. Zuckerberg to continue to develop and
program The Face Book.

The agreement gave rise to fiduciary obligations between Mr. Ceglia and Mr. Zuckerberg.
The agreement obligated Mr. Zuckerberg to deal fairly and honestly with Mr. Ceglia.
The agreement obligated Mr. Zuckerberg to act with the utmost loyalty.

After the agreement was signed, Mr. Zuckerberg and Mr. Ceglia never met in person again,
parted ways, and began their respective contractual obligations.

Lisa Simpson, counsel for Facebook Inc. and Mark Zuckerberg, on July 20, 2010, in
Federal District Court in Buffalo, NY, before Judge Richard Arcara, made the following
admissions under questioning by Judge Arcara:

a. “Mr. Zuckerberg did indeed have a contract with Mr. Ceglia.”
b. “...agreed to code for Mr. Ceglia with respect to a project called Street Fax”.

c. “Street Fax, F-A-X, which is actually one of the projects mentioned in the
document”

d. ”... with respect to the contract that we have in front of us, we have some serious
questions because there are many inconsistencies and many undefined terms and
things that don't make sense if you look at it on its face. Specifically, you'll see that
there's a mention in there of Facebook and then there's another mention in there of
Pagebook, and those are inconsistent. The consideration in the contract is directed
directly to Pagebook. There's no consideration at all in the contract that relates to
Facebook.”

e. “Our client entered a contract with Ceglia.”

In an email dated September 274 2003, Mark Zuckerberg writes in part, “... Further, since
the plan involves more than one college, the name can't have Harvard in it and remains
unresolved. Additionally, both original names facebook.com and pagebook.com are
unavailable, so there is no actual domain name either. thefacebook.com and
thepagebook.com are both available but are clearly not a premium quality domain as they
are much harder to remember.”

That agreement gave Paul Ceglia a valid enforceable ownership interest in the Facebook.

That interest includes, but is not in any way limited to, Facebook's intellectual property
rights, advertising rights, current and future business interests.
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45.

That agreement explicitly gives Paul Ceglia an ownership interest in the software,
programming language, and business interests derived from the expansion of Facebook to
a larger audience.

In addition to the $3,000 cashier's check tendered on April 28, 2003, Paul Ceglia further
tendered to Mark Zuckerberg a check in the amount of $5,000 on August 4, 2003, that was
deposited in Mark Zuckerberg's Fleet Bank student checking account.

On November 16, 2003, Paul Ceglia received an email from Mark Zuckerberg requesting
$1,000, in additional funds, for the continued development of The Face Book website as
Mark Zuckerberg disclosed that there were two Harvard students (Winklevoss twins)
preparing a website to compete with The Face Book.

Paul Ceglia complied with the request for additional funds for The Face Book and mailed
$1,000 by Fed Ex dated November 27, 2003. The receipt of these additional funds for The
Face Book are acknowledged by Mark Zuckerberg in his follow-up email on Jan. 1st, 2004,
and were deposited in his Fleet Bank student checking account.

Mark Zuckerberg, under oath, at his June 22, 2006 hearing in the ConnectU lawsuit
admitted that he commingled his funds from Streetfax and The Face Book into his student
checking account at Fleet Bank.

The contract provided that Paul Ceglia was entitled to an additional 1% ownership interest
in the above mentioned property for each day after January 1, 2004, that the website was
not online.

On January 1, 2004, Mark Zuckerberg authored an email to Paul Ceglia acknowledging the
receipt of the $1,000, requests additional funding for The Face Book site, and for Paul
Ceglia to waive the penalty clause in their contract.

In an email authored on January 5, 2004 from Paul Ceglia to Mark Zuckerberg, Paul Ceglia
asks Mark Zuckerberg about the status of The Face Book site, and how he had spent the
additional $1,000.

In that same email, Paul Ceglia threatens to call Harvard and/or Mark Zuckerberg's
parents.

At that time and unbeknownst to Paul Ceglia, Mark Zuckerberg is on probation following
his violations of the Harvard privacy regulations when he created a website entitled
Facemash by hacking into the Harvard University's server and/ or students information
without authority.

Facemash was a website created to allow Harvard students to vote on the appearance of
other students in a derogatory and sarcastic manner.

On January 6, 2004, Mark Zuckerberg authored an email to Paul Ceglia demanding that
any action by Paul Ceglia to call Harvard or his parents “would be seriously violating our
trust by doing so, ...” confirms that there existed a “fiduciary relationship” with Paul Ceglia
in their contractual and business relationship.
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Unbeknownst to Paul Ceglia, on January 7, 2004, Mark Zuckerberg accepts $1,000 from
Eduardo Saverin for 30% of The Face Book.

On January 13, 2004, Paul Ceglia authored an email to Mark Zuckerberg agreeing with him
to utilize the database from Streetfax in order to facilitate the construction of The Face Book
site. “Mark, I got to thinking, seems like a fantastic idea to use the database we built
already, there is really no way you could rebuild something that could work as well.”

To illustrate the defect in MySpace and Paul Ceglia's contribution with the superior search
engine for The Face Book, Paul Ceglia asks Mark Zuckerberg to attempt to spell twenty
names of students he attended high school with on MySpace in order to see for himself the
disadvantage of the specific spelling requirements of MySpace that The Face Book would
eliminate.

With permission, Mark Zuckerberg utilized the database created for StreetFax, which was
and is the intellectual property of Paul Ceglia.

Mark Zuckerberg in his email to Paul Ceglia on January 16, 2004, states, “I'll check into it
and see how easily we could modify the script, I think you are right though and that it
could manage people just as well as it manages street intersections.”

On January 14, 2004, Mark Zuckerberg purchases the domain name “TheFaceBook.com”
from monies received from Paul Ceglia.

On February 2, 2004, Mark Zuckerberg authored an email to Paul Ceglia complaining
about the penalty clause in the contact stating that, as it was presently constituted at that
time, Paul Ceglia would own over 80% of the company (Facebook). Mark Zuckerberg gives
Paul Ceglia an ultimatum that he would not launch the site until and unless, “you drop the
penalty completely and that we officially return to 50/50 ownership.”

On February 3, 2004, Paul Ceglia authored an email to Mark Zuckerberg agreeing to
remove the penalty clause and share 50/50 ownership in The Face Book.

On February 4, 2004, Mark Zuckerberg authored an email to Paul Ceglia confirming the
launch of their website “thefacebook.com.” and states, “I'll let you know how it goes.”

Prior to the launch of the Face Book site, Paul Ceglia was the progenitor of the business
expansion model for the software of The Face Book as a free site versus Mark Zuckerberg's
idea of charging $29.95 per month for Harvard students.

In addition, Paul Ceglia promoted that The Face Book site go city to city rather than being
limited to Harvard and/ or the other Ivy League schools.

Mark Zuckerberg refused to give Paul Ceglia access to the website stating that he would
have to have a harvard.edu address to get beyond the home page.

In his last email authored by Mark Zuckerberg to Paul Ceglia on July 22, 2004, Mark
Zuckerberg attempts to induce Paul Ceglia to accept a refund in the amount of $2,000 that
Paul Ceglia had previously invested in Facebook by lying when he states, “ Another
summer is here and I still don't have any time to build our site ...”
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Mark Zuckerberg intentionally lied to Paul Ceglia about his actions and the success of
TheFaceBook.com.

Mark Zuckerberg's email of July 22, 2004 was an outright fraud, as he, among other things,
attempted to use his Harvard email address, rather than his Facebook email, to mislead
and conceal the truth that Facebook was exploding within it's confined circles.

Also at that time, and unbeknownst to Paul Ceglia, Mark Zuckerberg was in the process of
incorporating in the State of Delaware when he intentionally made false representations to

conceal his intent to defraud Paul Ceglia out of his 50% ownership in Facebook.

On July 29t 2004, Mark Zuckerberg Breaches the contract with Paul Ceglia by denying him
his ownership interest in Facebook Inc.

For several months, Mr. Zuckerberg failed to deliver to Mr. Ceglia his rightful ownership
share.

Under testimony given on June 2274 2006, Mark Zuckerberg admits to having backdated at
least one document.

On July 29, 2004, Mr. Zuckerberg, Mr. Moskovitz, and Mr. Saverin formed The Facebook,
Inc. in the State of Delaware.

On January 7, 2005, Mr. Zuckerberg, signs the First Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of the The Facebook Inc. in the State of Delaware.

On March 31, 2005, Mr. Zuckerberg, signs the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of The Facebook Inc. in the State of Delaware.

At some time after the formation of Facebook, Inc., Mr. Zuckerberg assigned his rights and
alleged property in Facebook to The Facebook, Inc.

Upon information and belief, that assignment included property that rightfully belonged
to Mr. Ceglia.

Mr. Zuckerberg made that assignment without notifying Mr. Ceglia.

Mr. Zuckerberg knew that the property he was purporting to assign to The Facebook, Inc.
rightfully belonged to Mr. Ceglia, as evidenced by the email sent one week before on July
22,2004, wherein Mr. Zuckerberg offers to repay Mr. Ceglia for his Facebook interest.

Mr. Zuckerberg knew he was violating his contract with Mr. Ceglia when he assigned
those rights to The Facebook, Inc.

Mr. Zuckerberg knew he was violating his fiduciary duties to Paul Ceglia.

Since the time of that incorporation, Facebook, Inc. has remained a privately held
company, making its ownership interest largely unknown.
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76.

77.

78.

However, upon information and belief, Mr. Zuckerberg breached his agreement with Mr.
Ceglia by continuing to give ownership interests to new investors.

Since Mr. Zuckerberg's assignment to Facebook, Inc., it has become one of the world's
most successful business ventures.

Currently, Facebook has more than 500 million users.

Moreover, Facebook and the proprietary rights connected to Facebook are valued at
billions of dollars.

14




Attachment 3 - Oral Arguments 7-20-10

15




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

PAUL D. CEGLIA,

Plaintiff,

- Vs - Docket Number
10-Cv-569

MARK ELLIOT ZUCKERBERG,
Individually, and FACEBOOK, INC.

Defendants.

TRANSCRIPT OF ORAL ARGUMENT
BEFORE THE HONORABLE RICHARD J. ARCARA
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

APPEARANCES:
For the Plaintiff: PAUL A. ARGENTIERI, ESQ.,
TERRENCE M. CONNORS, ESQ.,
and JAMES W. GRABLE, JR., ESQ.
For the Defendants: LISA T. SIMPSON, ESOQ.
MICHAEL B. POWERS, ESQ.
and SEAN C. McPHEE, ESQ.
Court Reporter: YVONNE M. GARRISON, RPR

Official Court Reporter
U.5.D.C., W.D.N.Y.

68 Court Street
Buffalo, New York 14202
716-847-2477

Taken on July 20, 2010 at 11:09 a.m.




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Proceedings

THE CLERK: Civil Action 2010-569A, Ceglia versus

Zuckerberg and other parties, oral argument on defendant's

motion to vacate and dissolve temporary restraining order.
Counsel, please state your name and the party you
represent for the record.

MR. CONNORS: Good morning. Terrence M. Connors,

James W. Grable, and Paul Argentieri. We're representing Paul

Ceglia.

MR. POWERS: Good morning, Your Honor. I'm Mike

Powers from Phillips Lytle; Sean McPhee from Phillips Lytle;

and Lisa Simpson from Orrick, Herrington for Facebook.

THE COURT: TIs everyone admitted?

MS. SIMPSON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Simpson, you're up.

MS. SIMPSON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Let's go.

MS. SIMPSON:

THE COURT:

MS. SIMPSON:

Good morning, Your Honor.

Good morning.

I think the issues here today are quite

simple. There really are two.

The first 1s whether this TRO

is expired, and we think that it 1is;

the second issue is 1if

this TRO is not expired,

whether it comports with the Federal

Rules, and the answer to that is that it does not.
As Your Honor's probably aware from reading the
papers, this TRO was obtained on July -- or June 30th in the
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State Court of Allegany County. It was obtained ex parte.
Defendant's were not provided any notice of the hearing.

The order itself was part of an order to show cause
by which the plaintiffs sought permanent injunctive relief and
accounting. It was not in anticipation of what we could tell
was a preliminary injunction. But what was part of this
document that the Court signed was a one-paragraph temporary
retraining order that was incredibly broad. What it did was it
actually says that it restrains Facebook from transferring,
selling or assigning any of its assets. This is a very —--

THE COURT: I think they agree with that.

MS. SIMPSON: How did he agree with that?

THE COURT: No, I think the plaintiff agrees with
that.

MS. SIMPSON: They agree that it's too broad.

THE COURT: I think that's the impression that I got
from reading the papers, that they agreed to have it modified.

MS. SIMPSON: Yes, Your Honor. But the question
isn't whether to modify it, the guestion is whether the TRO, as
issued, is defective.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. SIMPSON: And, indeed, it is.

And I'd like to start first with the fact that we
really don't think it's in place anymore. If you look at the

state court order, it is very clear on its face that the TRO
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was intended to be in place until July 9. It doesn't say until
hearing from the parties. It doesn't say until the parties
appear to discuss this issue. It doesn't say, you know, at the
resolution of the issues on this motion. What it says 1s until
July 9. 1It's a straightforward date.

THE COURT: Once it came over here in federal court
then what happened?

MS. SIMPSON: Well, once it came over here in federal
court the rule is very clear. Once you get to federal court,
under removal, where there's a TRO in place, 1t 1s true that
the TRO carries over to the federal court, but only to the
extent that it would have been in place in the state court.

THE COURT: You don't think it goes over 14
additional days from the time it's removed here?

MS. SIMPSON: No, the test that's set out, both in
Ultracashmere and Carrabus both cited in our —-- or Carrabus
both cited in our brief, and the Granny Goose case by the
Supreme Court, say that what happens is you look at the shorter
of the duration of what was supposed to happen in the state
court or what's going to happen in the federal court. And so
what we're looking at --

THE COURT: Doesn't Granny Goose say it stays in
affect?

MS. SIMPSON: Well, any —-- under 1450, 28 Section

1450, an order that was put intc place in the state court --
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THE COURT: Okay.

MS. SIMPSON: -- upon removal carries over to the
federal court.

Our position is that that same very day was also the
day that the TRO expired.

THE COURT: Doesn't the time run from the date of the
removal?

MS. SIMPSON: The time under the Federal Rules, yes.

THE COURT: So 14 days from the date it was removed.

MS. SIMPSON: Under the Federal Rules, it would be
14 days from the date of removal. But our position is that the
state court order, itself, on its face --

THE COURT: No matter, even if I don't agree with

you -—--

MS. SIMPSON: Yes.

THE COURT: =-- it expired on Friday?

MS. SIMPSON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: This Friday. Assuming it's 14 days.

MS. SIMPSON: Yes.

THE COURT: You're taking the position it doesn't
extend it until Friday. It's whatever the time was, July --

MS. SIMPSON: July 9th.
THE COURT: July 9th.
MS. SIMPSON: Yes.

THE COURT: Well, continue your argument.
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MS. SIMPSON: OQOkay. So either the TRO expired on
July 9th, which is our position, in which case we're here, you
know, just making sure that that is indeed the case, or, as
Your Honor points out, it does expire on Friday.

But since we're here arguing about this TRO I don't
think that we should wait until Friday for a resolution of this
issue because of the mass defects that are in place with this
TRO. It is not following the Federal Rules at all.

And, once again, when we look -- when we bring a TRO
over from the state court and consider it in federal court the
Federal Rules apply and that is very clearly set forth in the
Granny Goose case.

So we look at the Federal Rules of Procedure. We
look at Rule 65. And when we look at Rule 65 we see that this
TRO has numerous procedural defects before we even get to the
standard for a TRO. The order does not describe plaintiff's
injury, it does not state why the harm was irreparable, it does
not state why the TRO issued without notice. Those are all
requirements set forth in 65(b).

It does not state the reasons why it issued. It does
not state its terms specifically. And it does not describe in
reasonable detail the acts to be restrained by Facebook. And
those are all requirements set forth by 65(d). Not one of
those procedural requirements are met here.

And with all of those procedural deficiencies, the
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TRO fails before we get any further. And that's the case in
the Rabbi decision which 1s cited in our papers.

If we move on past that, and again, we shouldn't even
be getting to these questions because the TRO is so
procedurally deficient on its face, but if we move to the
issues that -- that generally govern whether a TRO should
issue, the standard is pretty clear. A TRO can issue if there
is irreparable and immediate injury and if there was likelihood
of success on the merits or, alternatively, 1f there are
serious questions as to the success on the merits and the
equity weigh in favor of an injunction.

THE COURT: I'm just -- you mentioned about notice.

MS. SIMPSON: Yes.

THE COURT: And issuing a TRO without written or oral
notice to adverse party or its attorney only 1f: Specific facts
in an affidavit or a verified complaint clearly show that
immediate and irreparable injury, loss, or damage will result
to the movant before the adverse party can be heard in
opposition; and the movant's attorney certifies in writing any
efforts made to give notice and the reasons why it should not
be required.

You're saying those requirements weren't done?

MS. SIMPSON: Those reguirements were not met, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: So your position is that notice had to be
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given?

MS. SIMPSON: Well, it either had to be given, or if
you look at 65(b) (2), where it says you have to state why —-

THE COURT: And that wasn't done here?

MS. SIMPSON: Notice did not, no.

THE COURT: Okay. All right.

MR. CONNORS: Your Honor, may I interpret for a
moment ?

THE COURT: I would appreciate hearing just one side
at a time, Mr. Connors.

Go ahead.

MS. SIMPSON: So, moving on to the standards for a
TRO, and as I mentioned, those are immediate irreparable harm,
likelihood of success on the merits, we don't get much past the
immediacy requirement here. There 1s no reason why this
individual, Mr. Ceglia, waited for over six years to assert his
rights. The requirements under a TRO are that these rights be
asserted immediately and there has to be some urgency and some
need for a TRO to protect the parties.

There's no plausible reason why there's an urgency
here. And Mr. Ceglia didn't even attempt to explain the delay
that has taken -- you know, that has taken him six years to
bring this to our attention.

That missing element of the TRO pictured here is

critical and crucial and it actually -- we don't even need to
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go past that. Without that kind of immediacy or urgency there
really is no basis for a TRO here.

And that is set forth in the Kalipharma case and the
arm —-- Amhad case, both cited in our brief, where in the
Kalipharma case it was only seven months and the Court said
seven months, that's way too long to wait for a TRO. We have
over six years here, which is much longer than seven months.

THE COURT: When does the time start to run?

MS. SIMPSON: The time?

THE COURT: The seven years or the six years?

MS. SIMPSON: Oh, it begins to run in February of
'04, according to plaintiff. Plaintiff asserted in their
papers that the contract was entered into in April of '03.

THE COURT: When did the breach occur?

MS. SIMPSON: The breach occurred, according to
plaintiff, in February, '04 when the Facebook site was complete
and the ownership interest was not transferred.

THE COURT: Do me one favor. Explain to me this
contract.

MS. SIMPSON: Your Honor, I would love to explain to
you the contract. We have some serious questions --

THE COURT: Tell me about the facts as you
understand -- or maybe I should ask the plaintiff. Maybe that
would be better.

But, as you understand it, because I'm trying to get
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a grasp for what happened back in 2004.

MS. SIMPSON: Yes, Your Hcnor.

THE COURT: As you understand them.

MS. SIMPSON: We have serious questions about the
authenticity of this contract, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, that's not right now. But
just so -- background, so I can get a better feel what happened
here.

MS. SIMPSON: Well, Your Honor, as far as I know --

THE COURT: Give me a little history of this.

MS. SIMPSON: Mr. Zuckerberg did indeed have a
contract with Mr. Ceglia. That --

THE COURT: Give me the background of how this all

started.

MS. SIMPSON: I actually don't know the entire
background.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. SIMPSON: What the contract asserts is that there
was a relationship about Facebook and there is not one. So I

can't give you -~

THE COURT: There is not one?

MS. SIMPSON: There is not one, no.

THE COURT: Well, your client was how old at the
time? I'm trying to figure out what happened.

MS. SIMPSON: He was 18.
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THE COURT: Eighteen?

MS. SIMPSON: Eighteen.

THE COURT: 2And he's a student somewhere?

MS. SIMPSON: He's a student at Harvard.

THE COURT: Harvard.

MS. SIMPSON: He's a freshman at Harvard.

THE COURT: Tell me what's going on so I can get an
idea.

MS. SIMPSON: He's a freshman at Harvard. He's a
computer coder.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. SIMPSON: And, from our understanding, he was
contacted by Ceglia or he contacted Ceglia and was -- agreed to
do work —--

THE COURT: How did that come about?

MS. SIMPSON: -- on a project for Ceglia.

I actually don't know the details of that.

THE COURT: All right. So 1 just took a three-days
course on computers and I still don't know a lot about them,
okay. So I'm trying to understand exactly how this all came
about.

But he's a student at Harvard. And he's doing what?

MS. SIMPSON: He is looking for money.

THE COURT: All right. Okay.

MS. SIMPSON: And one of his skills was being able to
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code. So he agreed to code for Mr. Ceglia with respect to a
project called Street Fax.

THE COURT: Called what?

M5. SIMPSON: Street Fax.

THE COURT: Street back?

MS. SIMPSON: Street Fax, F-A-X, which is actually
one of the projects mentioned in the document submitted by
plaintiff.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. SIMPSON: You'll see the document --

THE COURT: That's the one that's real hard to read?

MS. SIMPSON: Yes, the one that's very hard to read.

It has two parts and part is in relation to Street
Fax and the other part is directly relating to Facebook.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. SIMPSON: Mr. Ceglia and Mr. Zuckerberg did work
together on the Street Fax project for a period of time.
Whether it was pursuant to this particular contract, we don't
believe so. The -- the exact termination of that relationship
was roughly around the end of 2003, as far as we understand.

And with respect to the contract that we have in
front of us, we have some serious questions because there are
many inconsistencies and many undefined terms and things that
don't make sense if you look at it on its face.

Specifically, you'll see that there's a mention in
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there of Facebook and then there's another mention in there of
Pagebook, and those are inconsistent. The consideration in the
contract is directed directly to Pagebook. There's no
consideration at all in the contract that relates to Facebook.

THE COURT: Just one second. It's really hard to
read this contract.

MS. SIMPSON: Precisely, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Are you saying -- again, I'm trying to
get background. I can't figure out -- your client signed this?

MS. SIMPSON: Our client entered a contract with
Ceglia. Whether he signed this piece of paper we are unsure at
this moment.

THE COURT: Well, it does appear to have his
signature on 1it.

MS. SIMPSON: It does appear to have a signature on

it.

THE COURT: And the plaintiff's signature.

MS. SIMPSON: It does appear to have two signatures
on it. We do have questions about that.

THE COURT: All right.

MS. SIMPSON: We'd like to see the original.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you have a clean copy of this?

MS. SIMPSON: I have the same copy.

THE COURT: Mr. Terrence (sic), do you have a copy of
this?




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Proceedings

MR. CONNORS: I do, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Can I see it? I'm trying to read this
and I just couldn't read it.

MR. CONNORS: We have the same. This one 1s a little
better, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you mind if I take ten minutes? Do
you have a copy of this?

MS. SIMPSON: I presume it's similar to yours.

(A recess was taken at 11:25 a.m.)

(Proceedings continued at 11:38 a.m.)

THE COURT: Before I hear from you, Mr. Connors,
would you please explain to me this contract?

MR. CONNORS: Sure.

THE COURT: Because I read it quickly, and I'm not
sure I understand it. And I'm sure it's just because of my
deficiencies, but I'm having trouble understanding it.

MR. CONNORS: Your Honor, I think I can provide some
insight into that.

I would note though, as you're well aware, we became
involved on Friday, this past Friday, and filed a notice of
appearance on that day. So we're catching up as well, but I
can give you some background information.

THE COURT: Yeah, just generally so I can -—-

MR. CONNORS: 1In the spring of 2003, Paul Ceglia was

about 28 or 29 years at that time. He was a -- a web designer.
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He was involved in collecting and perfecting databases, which
he thought would be the future of the internet. It's back in
2003 now, so there's still a lot to come.

He had this business called Street Fax, F-A-X, and
basically what he would do is he would seek to develop a
database that would consist of millions of photographs of
streets throughout the United States.

He would contract with insurance companies so that
they'd have that accessible through a click of their mouse.
They could get into his database and get a photo. TIf there's
an auto accident at Main and Court they would be able to get
there and take a look at that, saving themselves a lot of money
and not having to send the adjusters out and all of those
investigators.

THE COURT: 1Is this like Google Earth?

MR. CONNORS: A little bit like that, although
specifically with respect to streets, Street Fax.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. CONNORS: And what he needed in the spring of
2003 was a website engineer. He needed someone to help him

develop the database itself. So he advertised. He put out the

advertisements on Craigslist. And, lo and behold, he got a
number of bids. One of them was from a freshman at Harvard by
the name of Mark Elliot Zuckerberg. He was, in addition to

being an enrolled student there, was the -- at least claimed to
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be the captain of their computer team and had the access to the
background of Harvard for these types of computer projects.
He bid a rather low amount of money. Said I'll do it

for a $1,000. I'll help you develop this database, he said,

but I've got a project of my own. I'm developing an online
yearbook for Harvard kids now. 1I'm thinking about expanding
it.

And our guy basically said, yeah, yeah, whatever you
want, I'll give you a $1,000 for that, but I want my database.
I want you to work on my database. So the function of this
contract was primarily to deal with the work for hire that was
required by Mark Zuckerberg to perform for Mr. Ceglia.

But it also provided for an investment in the project
that at that time was a fledgling project, you know, with the
dot com bust occurring earlier, probably little chance of
success. Who would know it would turn into what it turned into
today.

And so the contract language was added that's pretty
clear, Your Honor. It says that it's for the continued
development of the software program.

THE COURT: Where are you reading?

MR. CONNORS: If you go to —--

THE COURT: Paragraph --

MR. CONNORS: Two, entire agreement.

THE COURT: Okay.
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MR. CONNORS: First sentence is: It reflects two
separate business ventures.

That's clearly true. The first is what I want you to
do for me, Mr. Zuckerberg, Street Fax database and programming
language, that's what I expect from you and your Harvard
computer team.

Now, the entire agreement reflects two separate
business ventures. That's paragraph 2. The first is what
you're doing for me. The second is for the continued
development of the software program and for the purchase and
design of a suitable website for the project seller has already
initiated. That's Zuckerberg's project. And he's designing it
to offer the students of Harvard University access to a website
similar to a live, functioning yearbook with the working title
of the Facebook.

And then it says it's agreed that the purchaser,

Mr. Ceglia, he's identified in the very first phrase, will own
a half interest, 50 percent in the software programming
language and business interests derived from the expansion of
that service, Facebook, to a larger audience.

And so what happens eventually, Your Honor, 1is Street
Fax goes into business, doesn't do as well. And then years
later Facebook takes off to the point where now it's -- today
on the news they say it celebrated its five hundred millionth

customer.
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And Mr. Ceglia has this contract that, you know, your
questions were direct; is that his signature?

Zuckerberg's been served for 11 days. They've come
up with a number of procedural defenses, but no one ever said
it's not his signature, it's a fake or it's a fake contract.

Basically we have a contract here that, obviously
it's going to be subject to some interpretation, I mean that's
what lawsuits are for, but basically it's a fairly clear
work~for-hire arrangement detailing two specific projects, and
that's essentially the background of the projects.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

Ma'am.

MR. CONNORS: Could I interrupt for one moment,
Judge?

Only to mention this, Your Honor, and obviously it's
your call in this. But I know that with respect to TRO's and
provisional remedies this Court and all courts are very serious
about how they look at these and what they want to do with them
because of the nature of the relief that's sought.

I reached out to Mr. Powers on Friday after we got

into it. I had a very brief conversation with Ms. Simpson a
day or two earlier, but I hadn't -- I hadn't entered an
appearance. But I reached out to Mike and I said, listen, we

ought to step back from this and talk about this before this

goes down a track of litigation that, quite frankly, isn't as
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important to us as the litigation of the contract. Is there
some way that we could present to the Court some type of
alternative disposition that wouldn't require us to invent the
wheel in the TRO, work and litigate that and get involved in
some type of a preliminary injunction hearing when there's all
sort of other key issues involved, not the least of which is
subject matter jurisdiction. There's issues that revolve
around the contract itself, discovery.

And what I think is we ocught to step back from it and
try to work out a proposal to give you an agenda as to what
would be the key items and the most important items. I think
getting bogged down in this TRO issue -- there's issues with
the TRO. There's problems. There's no question about that.

And since we've gotten and looked at it, we're really
willing to acknowledge that. But we need to get to the meat of
this dispute, which, we think, the meat of that dispute is this
two-page contract. So we think it might work out 1if we stepped
back a little bit and had some discussion about the procedural
options available to both sides.

THE COURT: Ms. Simpson.

MS. SIMPSON: Your Honor, we're always happy to have
a discussion. We would never say no to that.

I do have some concerns. One is that we have a stay
in place of this TRO. And if, for some reason, we're

abandoning the determination on that TRO today, I would want
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that stay to remain in place. And I'm a little concerned about
the suggestion of a conversation --

THE COURT: The TRO would actually expire even if --
I know you disagree -- but even the worst of situations for
you, I guess, it would be Friday.

MS. SIMPSON: Yes. No, I don't disagree that it
expires Friday. I'm -~ in the longest counting of the days.
So I weould request that it remain stayed until Friday.

But I do have some concerns because I would -- I
wouldn't want you not be up front because there is virtually no
restraints that Facebook would agree to, you know, to have in
place in this case. So if that's what --

THE COURT: You haven't talked at all, have you,
except on the telephone?

De you want to talk to Mr. Connors for --

MS. SIMPSON: I think he's aware of the fact that we
are not looking to put a restraint in place of any kind.

THE COURT: And his position, as far as you know,
was?

MS. SIMPSON: Perhaps --

THE COURT: Plaintiff wants a TRO.

MS. SIMPSON: I'm sorry, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Plaintiff wants a TRO of some sort.

MS. SIMPSON: Right. And we're not willing to put a

TRO in place.
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THE COURT: 0Of any kind?

MS. SIMPSON: Of any kind.

THE COURT: So it wouldn't do much good to talk right
now, or would it?

MS. SIMPSON: It wasn't my proposal. I'm happy to
have a conversation. I don't know what the --

THE COURT: Well, I'll tell you what. Go over to
Judge Curtin's courtroom and why don't you have a little
conversation. I'm going to be here all day. Talk.

And if you get into a —-- you start swinging at each
other, let me know, come on back in here and we'll continue.
But certainly if people can talk to eéch other civilly, maybe
you can make some progress without the Court's intervention.
If you can't, come on back here and I'm here.

So, Denise, would you open up Judge Curtin's
courtroom, and just the lawyers will be permitted in there.
Nobody else.

MS. SIMPSON: Yeah --

THE COURT: Maybe Mr. Connors —-- or maybe you'll
agree to some TRO. I don't know. But Judge Curtin always took
that position. It's always good to have lawyers talk before
the Court gets involved. And it's because lawyers are much
better at it than judges are.

And so why don't you go in there for five minutes.

If it's useless, fine. If you want to spend the whole day in
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there, be my guest. I'm here. Okay.

MS. SIMPSON: Okay. Your Honor, there are a number

of points I'd like to raise with respect to -—-

THE COURT: I know. We'll just pick up where you

left off.

MS. SIMPSON: All right. Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. We'll take a recess.

(A recess was taken at 11:48 a.m.)
(Proceedings continued at 1:07 p.m.)
THE COURT: All right. Ms. Simpson.
MS. SIMPSON: Yes.

THE COURT: Mr. Connors.

MR. CONNORS: May I7?

Your Honor, thank you for the opportunity to speak

about the subject that's brought us in front of you today.

I think we've made some progress. And what we would

like to inform you is that both sides agree that there are

other issues that we should be focusing on.

There is a priority to other parts of this lawsuit

other than provisional remedies. In that regard, Your Honor,

we recognize and agree that the procedural posture of this case

is that there is a stay of the temporary restraining
remaining in place right now; that the parties agree
the latest the temporary retraining order expires on

That would make any motion to dissolve or modify the

order
that at
Friday.

temporary
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restraining order rendered moot as of Friday. And we're in
agreement with that procedural posture.

The only thing the parties would state to the Court
is that for the future, both sides reserve their right to any
provisional remedies that they might be entitled to as a matter
of law or that they would desire to seek in the future.

So that, essentially, what will happen is we'll
attend to the business of litigation right now. We'll look at
the case. If something happens that we think is -- warrants a
provisional remedy, we'll apply to you under the correct rule
of Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

In the meantime, we'll look at the other issues, some
of which we addressed here today that deal with the lawsuit,
the contract, the subject matter jurisdiction, personal
jurisdiction, all these issues.

THE COURT: Okay. So by operation of law -- well,
the stay will be in effect until Friday. Friday by operation
of law the TRO will dissolve.

Is that the right word, dissolve?

MR. CONNCRS: It is, Your Honor.

MS. SIMPSON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Use that word --

MR. CONNORS: TIt's the statute.

THE COURT: Vacated or something. But since the

Supreme Court uses dissolve, I'll use dissolve.
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So then an answer is due, I guess. Is that the next
step?

MS. SIMPSON: That would be the next step, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: And that will be 20 days from when, today
or --

MS. SIMPSON: It's 20 days from the -- I think the
service. I don't think that changes. The service of the
complaint.

THE COURT: Well, that's an issue, too, isn't 1it?

MS. SIMPSON: Well, the service issue was concerning
the TRO with respect to Mr. Zuckerberg.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. SIMPSON: It was not properly served, but he was
served with a complaint.

THE COURT: Okay. So when will the 20 days start to
run?

MS. SIMPSON: Do you have dates? It is 21 days from
service of the summons, I'm sorry. I haven't done the math on
which day that is.

I will say that defendant most likely intends to make
a motion to dismiss and so may request additional time.

The date is July 27th, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Today is the 20th.

MS. SIMPSON: Yes.
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THE COURT: And it's your intent to file a motion to
dismiss?

MS. SIMPSON: Correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. So as far as the Court's
concerned, what do you want me to do?

MS. SIMPSON: I haven't spoken with plaintiff's
counsel about that next step yet, Your Honor. I don't know if
he would consent to a brief extension in order for us to do
that. Also --

THE COURT: Do you want to go back into the chambers?

MR. CONNORS: I would consent, Your Honor, to an
appropriate extension. As I say, there's other issues that
might deal with subject matter jurisdiction as well. I think
we probably need to get into some dialogue.

If Your Honor could perhaps pick a date to bring us
back or report back to you at scme point, I think that might be
the most advisable method.

THE COURT: Give me a date.

MS. SIMPSON: The other thing I would mention, Your
Honor, is I think that plaintiff may intend to file an amended
complaint, in which case it would make more sense, I think, in
terms of resources to wait on our motion to dismiss until we
see that amended complaint. So again, we'll probably do some
chatting and get back to you.

THE COURT: I'm going to take a five-minute break.
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You put together a schedule that is agreeable with both
parties, and I will go along with it, I think, unless there's
some conflict, okay.

MS. SIMPSON: Yes.

THE COURT: Work out a date. Give me the schedule
for everything. We'll put it in place and you'll prepare an
order for me confirming those dates, all right.

MS. SIMPSON: Okay.

THE COURT: Mr. Powers has nothing to do today. He
can draft the order. I will be back in whenever you want me
back.

(A recess was taken at 1:11 p.m.)

(Proceedings continued at 1:26 p.m.)

THE COURT: Okay. All right.

MR. CONNORS: Your Honor, we have reached agreement,
and with the help of your law clerk, on or before August 6th,
2010, parties shall provide the Court with a proposed
scheduling order setting forth the dates to answer, move to
dismiss, and/or move to remand.

In the interim, parties agree that the stay of the
TRO shall be in effect until July 23rd, at which time the TRO
will expire on its own terms.

The parties stipulate that the time to answer shall
be extended until September 8th, 2010, unless otherwise

extended in stipulated scheduling order, and the plaintiff
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reserves all rights to move for provisional remedies if
appropriate.

THE COURT: Do you agree with that, ma'am?

MS. SIMPSON: I do.

I just have one edit, which I didn't catch in the
first round, and that is the time to answer or otherwise move,
the second time that's mentioned. I think we did that the
first time, but not the second time.

THE COURT: Just sit down. Take your time.

(Off the record discussion.)

MR. CONNORS: Ms. Simpson pointed out that, Your
Honor, with respect to the time to answer, she also wants to be
able to move to file motions against the complaint as well, so
that that stipulation should include the time to answer or move
extended until September 8th, 2010.

And I pointed out there's an earlier reference to the
motions as well, but that will be the subject to a scheduling
order proposed to the Court. So we'll have basically a double
review over any of those dates.

THE COURT: What about this amended complaint that
you're thinking about? If you file -- do you intend to maybe
file an amended complaint?

MR. CONNORS: It's definitely something --

THE COURT: What is that going to do to all the

scheduling?
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MR. CONNORS: Our thought on that when it came up in
discussions is that we probably ought to address the matters
such as subject matter jurisdiction and remand first, get that
buttoned down, and then decide what we're going to do with
respect to any —--

THE COURT: Do you agree with that, ma'am?

MS. SIMPSON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: What I don't want to do 1s get into a
procedural quagmire. All these amended complaints, motion to
dismiss and which one are we talking about. It just doesn't
get easy to work through that sometimes.

MS. SIMPSON: Right.

THE COURT: So what I'd like to do is try to keep --
I mean, you are all obviously entitled to file whatever motions
you deem appropriate. But I'd like to keep it in some kind of
order, so I'm not dealing with orders, you know, motions to
dismiss, there's amended complaint filed thereafter and then
we've got to file another motion to dismiss the amended
complaint. And it gets all bogged down in procedure.

And, first of all, it's very expensive to do all
that, it's time-consuming for the Court. 1In the long run,
strategically, I don't think either side gets an advantage.

MS. SIMPSON: Right.

THE COURT: So let's go through the time frame one

more time.
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MS. SIMPSON: Well, Your Honor, if I could speak to
that for a second. That is precisely why I raised the amended
complaint earlier, and I think what we're anticipating doing
with our scheduling order is to take those issues in a logical
order. So we'll deal with the motion to remand first and
plaintiff will decide whether they wish to make that motion.
If they do we'll put a briefing schedule in for that.

Then we'll deal with the guestion of whether an
amended complaint is going to be filed. And if it is, then
we'll put in dates for the amended complaint. And then we'll
put in dates for the motion to dismiss, depending on whether
there's an amended complaint or a complaint, we'll move to
dismiss whichever one the plaintiff has decided to put forth.

THE COURT: Go through those dates one more time.

MS. SIMPSON: I would just say that the date on the
answer that we've put 1n this stip was -- we had actually
requested that the answer date just be stipped out until the
date that we put in the scheduling order but folks thought we
should have a concrete date in there. So I don't expect that
date to stick.

THE COURT: I think we're better off with concrete
dates.

MS. SIMPSON: I don't think that date is going to
stick because as soon as we set out the scheduling order it's

going to move, depending on what the plaintiff is doing.
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THE COURT: So what do you propose?

MR. CONNORS: We can always move it.

MS. SIMPSON: I think it's fine for now, 1s what I
think.

THE COURT: Okay. There's going to come a time, just
so you know, there's going to come a time when there's going to
be a scheduling order put in place that I'm going to put in
place and you're going to have to follow that one.

MS. SIMPSON: Understood.

THE COURT: Right now, because we're at the
preliminary stages, I'll let you do 1t, because you've got to
make decisions on procedurally how you want to proceed.

But there's going to come a time where I'm going to
put an order in and we're going to follow that order.

MS. SIMPSON: We hope to give you an order you can
enter on the 6th.

THE COURT: That's by August 6th?

MS. SIMPSON: Yes.

THE COURT: And it will set forth all the dates?

MS. SIMPSON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And I guess we're going to hold to those
dates, unless there's an amended complaint filed, is that --

MS. SIMPSON: Well, I'm hoping that the order will
encompass whether an amended complaint will be filed or not.

THE COURT: Of course, if I remand it back to the




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Proceedings

state court this is all moot.

MS. SIMPSON: This is all moot.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Anything else?

MR. CONNORS: No, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you, very much.
MS. SIMPSON: Thank you, very much.

(Proceedings concluded at 1:32 p.m.)
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